
 

 

The Mayor’s European Social Fund (ESF) 2019 – 2023 Programme Round 2  

General Queries – Questions and Answers  
 
Q1: Can you advise if there are any restrictions on the number of lots an 
organisation can bid for in Rounds 2 and 3? For example, could a provider bid for the 
Parental Employment lot, and then another lot in Round 3? Additionally, if a provider 
won a lot in Round 1, are they allowed to bid in Rounds 2 and 3? 
 
A: With the exception of the Careers Clusters projects, there is no limit to the 
number of contracts/grants a Provider can be awarded in these new rounds of Grant 
Award/Procurement. Similarly, a Provider that was awarded one or more contracts in 
Round 1 may submit a bid for Rounds 2 or 3 and be awarded a Grant/Contract if 
their bid is successful. With respect to Careers Clusters, we currently expect that the 
maximum number of Careers Clusters contracts or grants that a provider can be 
awarded is two, including any that have been awarded in Phase 1 of the Mayor's 
ESF 2019-23 programme. 
 

Q2: Are there opportunities for further networking relating to this funding 

opportunity? Opportunities for your team to put us in touch with organisations 

considering bidding for the funding or who you know are looking for partnerships? 
 
A: There are no plans to run further networking events in addition to the Prior 
Information workshops that have already been held. Presentations and Q&A from 
the Prior Information workshops can be found at: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-
we-do/funding/european-social-fund/funding-opportunities. The GLA Skills and 
Employment team has created a Partnership Database to enable organisations to 
make links with others that may be interested in bidding if they wish to do so. The 
Partnership Database can be found at: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-
do/funding/european-social-fund/mailing-list-and-partnership-database.  
 
Q3: Can I also please get some clarity on how the funding works? i.e. is it similar to 
ESF where you get allocated a contract value and then payments are made on 
outputs i.e. progressions etc. Or is funding based on expenditure i.e. receive monies 
based on spend and therefore more cost recovery? 
 
A: Payments for grants and contracts within the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme 
are made against outputs and outcomes delivered by the provider. The ‘Payment 
Trigger Calculator’ (PTC) will automatically calculate the ‘Unit Rates’ payable for 
outputs and outcomes and the 'Overall Unit Cost' for the Primary Result. Providers 
should note that payments may be reduced if a provider fails to deliver the Primary 
Results that they offer in their bid. Bidders are advised to refer to the draft Mayor's 
ESF 2019-23 Round 2 Delivery Handbook for further information. 
 
 
Q4: Regarding the calculation of financial health, on the Value of funding as a % of 
sales calculation, does the GLA use the total contract value or the annual contract 
value ie the total contract value split over the number of years of the contract when 
calculating this %. 



 

 

A: For financial due diligence purposes, the 'Value of Funding' used for the 
calculation of the 'Value of Funding as a % of Sales' is based on the total contract 
value. 
 
Q5: On the previous round of GLA ESF last year, bidders were encouraged to 
produce stakeholder declaration forms to support bids and were encouraged to 
reference these against specific bid questions. Do you envisage that on this current 
round we should get declaration forms from all referral/progression/strategic partners 
and key employers etc or are the Partnership Declaration Forms mainly for potential 
subcontractors? 
 
A: Only Subcontractors/Subgrantees who will have a formal legal Agreement with 
the bidder to deliver elements of the project are required to complete a 'Partnership 
Declaration Form'. Informal Delivery Partners who will not have a legal Agreement 
are not required to complete a Partnership Declaration Form but should be 
referenced in the Application Form where relevant. 
 
Q6: How do we access the Application form and the Project Criteria? What scheme 
can we apply for?  
 
A: Further information and the Grant Award application documents can be found on 
the GLA's website: https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/funding/european-social-
fund/funding-opportunities. All documentation (including the Application Form and 
Project Requirements) can be found by clicking on the "Current Opportunities" drop-
down for the project you wish to apply for (i.e. Homelessness, Ex-offenders or 
Parental Employment). There are no restrictions on the number of projects an 
organisation can apply for. 
 
Q7: On Page 5 of the Application it states that "All answers must be typed using Arial 
font, point size 12, and should be saved in Microsoft Word." However, the application 
form is locked and the text inserted appears to be fixed so that it shows that it is 
point size 12 but does not confirm that it is Arial font.  Can you confirm that the 
application form is set up in such a way that whatever we insert will appear as Arial 
font, point size 12? 
 
Published Monday 2 March 2020  
 
A: The Application Forms have been locked at Foundry Form Sans font, point size 
12. Whether typing straight into the document or pasting from another document, the 
text will automatically default to Foundry Form Sans font, point size 12. We 
apologise for the discrepancy in the information in the Application Form regarding 
the font. 
 
Q8: Can you confirm that ESF Delivery Partners who provide ad-hoc support in the 
delivery of the project and are unpaid do not need to sign a Partnership Declaration? 
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q5. 
 
Q9: Please could you confirm the GLA Grant does not require providers to source 
match funding? 



 

 

 
A: The Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme is being match funded by the separate 
GLA's Adult Education Budget procured contracts. All projects in Rounds 1, 2 and 3 
of the ESF programme are therefore fully funded and do not require Applicants to 
provide match funding. 
 
Q10: On the application form Part B (ix) - Accreditations -  the question states  
"Confirm which appropriate qualifications, centre accreditations and quality 
accreditations will be held by all Subcontractors/Subgrantees at the time that delivery 
commences that will allow particular components of the project to be delivered, and 
which Subcontractors/Subgrantees hold which qualification or accreditation, (this will 
be reviewed during the project set up and grant award stages)." Can you confirm that 
you do not wish the centre accreditations and quality accreditations of the bidding 
organisation within this part of the response, and if not, where should these be 
provided?  
 
A: We have re-published the Application Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness 
and Parental Employment, correcting this error and an error in Part B (iv) where it 
only requested for confirmation of whether Subcontractors/Subgrantees will deliver 
accredited training. If a successful bidder or their Subcontractors/Subgrantees intend 
to deliver accredited training, the GLA will require copies of all relevant centre and 
quality accreditations prior to issuing the Grant Agreement. 
 
Q11: Our intention was to provide the service as a Sole Delivery Organisation 
without the need for formal subcontractors / subgrantees; however, we would like to 
be able to spot purchase training or barrier resolution on a call off basis to meet the 
specific needs of individual participants on our programme.  Given that this could 
mean purchasing services for example that costs just £100 on a one-off basis from a 
provider to meet the needs of just one participant; can you confirm that we would not 
need to have signed subcontract agreements in advance and that this spot purchase 
to meet the needs of individuals would be permissible? 
 
A: We recognise the need to purchase ad-hoc services to meet the specific needs of 
Participants; however, if this service is a known requirement to be regularly used to 
ensure delivery of the Project, the service provider should be named in the 
Application and you would be expected to comply with the ‘Appointment of 
Subcontractor’ guidance outlined in the Delivery Handbook – Round 2. 
 
If a requirement for a service arises during the lifetime of the Project, or is 
recognised now but it is unclear whether the requirement may or may not be used, 
the Delivery Provider must comply with the Procurement requirements set out in 
Section 3 of the Draft Grant Agreement – Round 2 when appointing organisations to 
deliver these services. 
 
Q12: Subcontractors: What position will the GLA be taking on subcontractors and 
whether they can be varied, and new subcontractors added post contract award that 
did not sign a declaration at bid stage? How fixed does the supply chain have to be 
at bid stage and is there any flexibility post contract award or during the life of the 
contract? 



 

 

A: Please refer to the 'Subcontractor selection and appointment' section of the 
Delivery Handbook - Round 2. The Subcontracting arrangements outlined in your 
Application will be evaluated as part of your Grant Application. 
 
Q13: Programme duration: Is there any maximum or minimum participant 
programme duration in terms of weeks/ months. It seems that the maximum is the 
life of the project and that there is no minimum? Is that correct? If a participant is 
failing to progress is there any requirement as to the duration of ongoing support? 
 
A: The delivery period for the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme - Round 2 is August 
2020 - June 2023. No limit has been set on the duration the Participant should/may 
stay on the Programme in recognition that the level of support and the time the 
Participant takes to progress onto an EET destination will vary per Participant. 
Details have been provided in the Eligibility and Evidence Handbook with regards to 
reporting a Participant as an 'Early Leaver' where they have disengaged from the 
Programme. 
 
Q14: Please could you clarify the minimum number of hours that someone needs to 
be contracted per week for the work to count as a job outcome?  
 
A: The minimum number of hours for a job outcome is 1 hour per week, however 
from a quality perspective we would expect participants to be supported into 
meaningful employment which is appropriate to their aims and needs and for the 
vast majority of participants a job of one hour per week would not meet these quality 
criteria. If a participant is employed in a job of a few hours per week (or on a short-
term contract) which is not appropriate to their individual aims and needs, we would 
expect the provider to continue working with them to secure additional hours or a 
more permanent contract during the sustained period. Work must be paid work in 
order to claim payment for an Entry Employment Result. While employment on a 
zero hours contract may technically count as ‘work’, providers must also be able to 
evidence that the participant is actually receiving payment for working within 4 weeks 
of starting on their zero hours contract. Please refer to the Eligibility and Evidence 
Handbook – Round 2 for further information. 
 
Q15: Part B iv (Other Documentation) the second last thing on your list states "Will 
any of the subcontractors/subgrantees involved in your project deliver accredited 
training as part of this project?"  The response options are yes/no.  Can the GLA 
please confirm that where we are not using subcontractors/subgrantees that it is 
acceptable to answer this question as Not Applicable or N/A? 
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q10. Please note, that if you do not have any 
Subcontractors/Subgrantees delivering accredited training, you can answer as 'N/A'. 
 
Q16: Part B iii (Due Diligence) - Bidders are asked to confirm they have enclosed 
"Financial Regulations - to include procurement rules. “Can the GLA clarify what is 
meant by this? What kind of documentation do you expect bidders to submit for this? 
 
A: Financial regulations are finance and governance frameworks which provide 
guidance on how a company implements protocols and procedures to ensure proper 
accountability for their activity. 



 

 

The framework includes guidance on items such as; delegation authority, setting and 
monitoring budgets, financial controls and financial administration. 

Q17: Can the GLA please provide their timeline for Contract Award following 
submission of the tenders; as this is a critical milestone in the development of the 
Implementation Plan that is required as part of the submission to Section 4 - 4.3 
Delivery Plan? 

A: We are aiming to score, moderate and complete the due diligence checks on the 
bids submitted for the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme - Round 2 between April -
May 2020 and notify successful and unsuccessful bidders between June - July 2020. 
We currently expect Agreements for grants awarded through this grant award 
process to commence from 1 August 2020. The GLA recognises that Providers will 
normally need time after the Grant Agreement commences to finalise and implement 
Project delivery arrangements and Bidders are asked to state in their Bids the date 
when they expect to begin delivering the project directly to their first Participants 
and/or Employer Beneficiaries.  

Q18: Application Form - Due Diligence Documentation (page 17) - The second 
shade box states: 'Please confirm that you have enclosed the following 
documentation with your application (for ALL BIDDERS)'. Could you clarify whether 
the requested documents should be provided by the Sole Lead Bidder only, or the 
Sole Lead Bidder and its subcontractors/sub grantees? 

A: If you are bidding as a Sole Lead Bidder with subcontractors/sub grantees, it will 
be your responsibility to check the financial health of your subcontractors/sub 
grantees. The financial health assessment will apply only to your organisation, as the 
Sole Lead Bidder with whom the GLA will have the Grant Agreement relationship, 
therefore the documentation submitted should only relate to the Lead Bidder. Further 
information is provided in the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme (Round 2) Financial 
Health Requirements and Guidance document. 
 
Q19: To calculate the overall score for an individual question e.g. 1.1 Project 
Activities where the weighting is 7%, are we correct in assuming that a score of 2 
would then achieve a weighted score of 2/3 of 7% i.e.  4.67% to 2 decimal places, 
and a score of 3 would achieve the full 7%? 
 
A: Your understanding of the scoring is correct. 
 
Q20: Can you confirm financial criteria are tested based on the latest published year-
end account for the lead organisation submitting the bid? 
 
A: The financial health assessment will apply to the Bidder with whom the GLA will 
have the grant agreement relationship, therefore the documentation submitted 
should only relate to the Lead Bidder or in the case of a Consortium, all Consortium 
members. To facilitate the financial health assessment, organisations must supply 
Audited accounts for the past 2 years, or accounts for the past 2 years signed by an 
independent qualified accountant if your organisation is exempt from audit.   
Further information is provided in the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme (Round 2) 
Financial Health Requirements and Guidance document. 
 



 

 

Q21: If the lead organisation has charitable investment that doesn't need to be 
repaid years after the delivery of the contract, can we assume it's not relevant for the 
financial due diligence tests or will it be taken into account? 
 
A: All income and expenditure incurred during the period of the 2 years financial 
statements provided will be considered. 
 
Q22: Multiple bidding/ subcontracting: is there a restriction against the same provider 
bidding as a Lead provider and also being included in another organisation's bid as a 
subcontractor in the same sub-region? 
 
A: There are no restrictions on the number of Applications a Provider may bid for as 
a Lead Provider or being named as a Subcontractor/Subgrantee in the same sub-
region. Please refer to Q1 with regards to the number of Grants an organization's 
can be awarded.  
 
Q23: Subcontractor due diligence Ofsted reports: The application form asks for us to 
submit subcontractors' Ofsted reports. What do we do if they do not have an Ofsted 
report? 
 
A: If an Ofsted inspection has not taken place and therefore a report is not available, 
you should respond as 'No'. If the Subcontractor/Subgrantee has failed to provide an 
Ofsted report to the Lead Bidder prior to the submission of the Application Form, you 
should respond as 'No', noting that all required paperwork will need to be submitted 
prior to a Grant Award. Where a Bidder has answered 'No' to any questions in (iii) 
and (iv) the GLA will clarify any discrepancies during the due diligence stage with the 
Bidder. 
 
Q24: Multiple bidding/ subcontracting: is there a restriction against the same provider 
bidding as a Lead provider and also being included in another organisation's bid as a 
subcontractor in the same sub-region? 
 
A: There are no restrictions on the number of Applications a Provider may bid for as 
a Lead Provider or being named as a Subcontractor/Subgrantee in the same sub-
region. Please refer to Q1 with regards to the number of Grants an organization's 
can be awarded.  
 
Q25: Subcontractor due diligence: what do you mean by Centre Accreditation? 
 
A: Centre accreditation is the formal recognition that an organisation is competent to 
perform specific processes, activities, or tasks (which are detailed in a scope of 
accreditation) in a reliable credible and accurate manner. The GLA requests that 
where a Lead Bidder or its Subcontractors/Subgrantees intend to deliver accredited 
training, they provide copies of the Centre Accreditation to confirm that they have the 
approval to do so at their delivery premises. 
 
Q26: Due Diligence: Does the Lead Bidder not have to provide evidence of their own 
Centre Accreditations? 
 



 

 

A: Please refer to the response to Q10. Lead Bidders intending to deliver accredited 
training are required to provide evidence of Centre accreditation.  
 
Q27: Scoring: is there any methodology behind the scoring % ie 50% for project 
methodology, 20% for Value for Money, 10% for cross-cutting themes? How were 
these % calculated? 
 
A: The % scores for each question have been weighted to represent the importance 
that the GLA attaches to the response to that question. In turn this then generates 
the overall breakdown of % of score for each section of the Application Form. 
 
 
Q28: Is any part of the Value for Money score given to the Payment Trigger 
Calculator? 
 
A: Information entered into the Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC) will be used in 
conjunction with the responses provided in Section 2 when scoring Q2.1 and Q2.2. 
 
Q29: Part D: References: We can only give two references however to cover all of 
the criteria required we ideally need to talk about 3 different contracts in the 
description that follows. Is it Ok to describe an additional contract in order to meet all 
of the criteria?  
 
A: The text box requesting information on the Projects included in the 'References' 
table may be used to provide details of additional Contracts/Grants delivered to meet 
the criteria.  
 
Q30: We are unable to find an award date in any of the documents provided. Please 
can you clarify when the expected award date is?  
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q17.  
 
Q31: Can you clarify whether the Delivery Plan (4.3) needs to include 
implementation/mobilisation activity pre- go-live or should it just include activities 
from the go-live date?  
  
A: The Delivery Plan (Q4.3) should include details of key 
implementation/mobilisation activities which occur after the Grant Agreement 
commences but before Participants and/or Employer Beneficiaries start on the 
Project. See also the response to Q17. 
 
Q32: Response Form Part C, Question 1.7 Risk Management - The space provided 
for the response to this question below the table does not allow the input of any text. 
In addition, the table embedded only allows limited text to be input (3 lines max) and 
can not be altered/expanded in any way. Can this be corrected to allow a full 
response to be provided? 
 
A: There was an entry text box missing for Q1.7 Risk Management. This has now 
been included and this space should be used to respond to the second bullet point. 
We apologise for any inconvenience caused. We have published a version 2 of the 



 

 

Application Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and Parental Employment on 
11/03/2020, correcting this error. Please ensure you submit your application using 
Version 2 of the Application Form. 
 
Q33: With regards to Part C Q1.1 and 1.2 - The formatting of the Application Form 
means that the headings and questions set by the GLA take up far more space than 
is the case in many of the subsequent questions.  However in Q 1.1 we are expected 
to address as a minimum 5 sub bullets relating to the question and in 1.2 we are 
expected to address 6 bullets.  
 
Subsequent questions are predominantly seeking responses to address only 3 or 4 
bullet points and provide more space for answers.  
 
This lack of space due to the formatting makes it very challenging to respond to 
these 2 questions effectively.  
 
Can the GLA please consider changing the Application Form to allow 2 full pages in 
which to respond to Questions 1.1 and 1.2? 
 
A: Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, we would like bidders to be 
succinct and write in plain English, hence the space allocated to Q 1.1 and 1.2. 
However we appreciate the feedback and would like to give bidders the best 
opportunity to provide a full response, therefore we have extended the space for 
bidders wishing to use it. Bidders should note that they do not need to use the full 
space unless it is felt it would add value to the bid. We have published a version 2 of 
the Application Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and Parental Employment on 
11/03/2020, with these amendments.  Please ensure you submit your application 
using Version 2 of the Application Form. 
 
Q34: Can the GLA please consider changing the available space for Q1.9 - the 
question takes up more space than other one page questions. Given that we only 
have the remainder of the one page to insert our response and Q1.9 is seeking us to 
address 5 sub bullets in the question, having a full page in which to respond would 
be more appropriate.  
 
Can the GLA please consider providing one full page in which to provide the answer 
to Q1.9? 
 
A: Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, we would like bidders to be 
succinct and write in plain English, hence the space allocated to Q 1.9. However we 
appreciate the feedback and would like to give bidders the best opportunity to 
provide a full response, therefore we have extended the space for bidders wishing to 
use it. Bidders should note that they do not need to use the full space unless it is felt 
it would add value to the bid. We have published a version 2 of the Application 
Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and Parental Employment on 11/03/2020, 
with these amendments.  Please ensure you submit your application using Version 2 
of the Application Form. 
 
Q35: Application Form - Page 54 outlines that scores of 0, 1, 2 or 3 will be awarded 
to each individual question in Part C in accordance with the table on page 54. Some 



 

 

of the individual questions however state that you must score higher than 60% to be 
considered for a grant.  
 
How does this 60% relate to the scoring mechanism on page 54? As far as we can 
tell the only percentage scores that could be obtained are either 0% (score of 0), 
33.33% to 2 decimal places (score 1 out of available 3), 66.67% (score 2 out of 
available 3) or 100% (score 3 out of available 3).  
 
Are we correct in assuming therefore that this score of 60% or more actually equates 
to gaining a score of 2 (66.67%) or 3 (100%) on the individual question?  
 
A: Your understanding of the scoring is correct. You would need to score 2 or more 
to be considered for a Grant Award. We have amended the guidance in the 
Application Form to make this clearer, removing reference to having to score 60% on 
key questions and replacing it with the need to score 2 or more to be considered for 
a Grant Award on key questions. We have published a version 2 of the Application 
Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and Parental Employment on 11/03/2020, 
with these amendments.  Please ensure you submit your application using Version 2 
of the Application Form. 
 
Q36: Application Form: Section 2 Value for Money weighted scores on page 55 do 
not add up 20% (they add to 10%). Please confirm the total percentage score. 
 
A: This is an error on the Parental Employment Application Form. The Value for 
Money (VfM) breakdown is: for Q 2.1 Outputs and Results - 12% and for Q 2.3 
Project Expenditure  - 8% = 20% in total. We apologise for any inconvenience 
caused. We have published a version 2 of the Parental Employment Application form 
correcting this error on 11/03/2020.  Please ensure you submit your application using 
Version 2 of the Application Form. 
 
Q37: 3. Subcontractor due diligence: CIF frameworks: what do you mean by 
appropriate CIF Framework? If we have submitted an Ofsted report does this cover it 
or is there something extra we need to supply? 
  
A: This is an error. Please accept our apologies for any inconvenience caused. We 
only require the latest copies of appropriate Ofsted reports and Centre Accreditations 
for any Providers delivering accredited training as part of the Project. We apologise 
for any inconvenience caused. We have published a Version 2 of the Ex-offenders, 
Homelessness and Parental Employment Application Forms removing this question 
on 11/03/2020.  Please ensure you submit your application using Version 2 of the 
Application Form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Q38: Based on a review of the draft grant agreement and associated documents, 
and in consultation with our internal tax specialists, we have concluded that, in its 
substance and notwithstanding clause 29.1 of the Agreement, the Agreement 
represents a contract for services and we believe that any funding to be provided 
would constitute consideration for services rendered by the recipient. Accordingly the 
payment of the grant would be subject to UK VAT at the standard rate. Is the GLA 
able to review and amend the relevant clauses in the Agreement to reclassify as a 
contract for services.  
 
A: We can confirm that Round 2 of the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme (which 
includes the Homelessness, Parental Employment and Ex-Offenders Projects) is not 
being conducted as to, and does not involve the procurement of, services, supplies 
or works (which would involve the conduct of different procurement activity). Any 
funding will be awarded on the basis of a contribution to the successful bidders’ 
costs of delivering the Project that it has proposed and which has been agreed by 
way of a conditional gift. No benefit accrues to the GLA as a result of the award of 
funding, the benefit accruing is to London and Londoners who fall within the Project 
Requirements' definition of Homelessness, Ex-Offenders and 
Unemployed/Employed Parents. The conditions of the gift, i.e. the funding terms, 
serve to enable the prudent management of public funds, the GLA to satisfy itself 
(and ultimately the ESF Managing Authority) of the probity of recipients’ use of 
funding and the validity of claims and to provide rights to protect the GLA’s interests 
as a funder in this regard. Any awards are made therefore, as a gross sum and do 
not attract VAT. 
 
Q39: We are unable to find an award date in any of the documents provided. Please 
can you clarify when the expected award date is?  
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q17.  
 
Q40: We are unable to enter text in the response box for 1.7 (Part C) below the risks 
and mitigations table. Can you resend the application form with the ability to do this.  
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q32. 
 
Q41: The scoring percentages in the Value for Money section of the scoring table at 
the end of the Application Form do not add up the total for that section. Please could 
you provide clarification on this?  
  
A: Please refer to the response to Q36.  
 
Q42: The table in Section 4 - 4.3 Delivery Plan is very limited in that it can only take 
about 15 words against each milestone. Would it be possible for the GLA to expand 
this table to accommodate at least twice this amount of text as this would enable 
bidders to show a more comprehensive and realistic Delivery Plan in this response. 
 
A: Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, the delivery plan should be 
succinct, hence the space allocated in Section 4 - 4.3 Delivery Plan. We are only 
looking for the headline key milestones and activities, so no extra space should be 
required. 



 

 

Q43: Can you clarify what is meant by the request for a 'Budgeted Allocation of 
funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity within the recipient's 
organisation will be funded' in (iii) Due Diligence Documentation. Is this in addition to 
the PTC required for submission? (Parental Employment)  
 
A: The document(s) submitted in response to the request for the 'Budgeted 
Allocation of funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity within the 
recipient's organisation will be funded' should include a breakdown of how the 
funding will be spent over the duration of the programme. This is in addition to the 
Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC), as the PTC only requires the overall breakdown 
of expenditure. 
 
Q44: Can you clarify whether the Delivery Plan (4.3) needs to include 
implementation/mobilisation activity pre- go-live or should it just include activities 
from the go-live date?  
 
A: The Delivery Plan (Q4.3) should include details of key 
implementation/mobilisation activities which occur after the Grant Agreement 
commences but before Participants and/or Employer Beneficiaries start on the 
Project. See also the response to Q17. 
 
Q45: 1/  In the section Part B iv (Other Documentation)  the first thing that you ask 
for in the list is "One electronic version of the fully completed Full Application Form in 
Microsoft Word"   and the third thing on the list is "One electronic version of the fully 
completed Application Form in Microsoft Word"  .Can you please explain the 
difference between the Full Application Form and the Application Form or confirm 
that this is the same thing and been listed twice in error? 
 
A: This has been listed twice in error. Bidders need only submit one fully completed 
electronic version of the Application form per Grant they are applying for. We 
apologise for any inconvenience caused. We have published a version 2 of the 
Application Forms for Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and Parental Employment on 
11/03/2020, correcting this error. Please ensure you submit your application using 
Version 2 of the Application Form. 
 
Q46: Can you confirm that the repetition of 'One electronic version of the fully 
completed Full Application Form in Microsoft Word' is a mistake and we only need to 
complete the one Application Form? 
 
A: Please refer to the response to Q45. 
 
Q47: On the Payment Trigger Calculator - Tab 6. Project Income the incorrect 
formula has been used by the GLA in Cell O16 , Cell O38, Cell O39 and Cell O40, 
which means the wrong totals are feeding through from these cells to the table 
headed Project Total in Line 90. 
 
This results in a significant discrepancy between the Total Lifetime value and the 
Maximum Grant Available value (not just a minor rounding difference). 
 



 

 

As bidders cannot change the formulas due to the cells being locked, will the GLA re 
publish a corrected version of the Payment Trigger Calculator? 
 
A: The incorrect formulas in the cells have been amended on both the Ex-Offenders 
and Homelessness Payment Trigger Calculators (PTCs). Version 2 of these PTCs 
have been uploaded on the 11/03/2020. Please use these when submitting your 
application. Please note: the Parental Employment PTC is not affected.  We 
apologise for any inconvenience caused. Please ensure you use Version 2 of the 
PTC when submitting your Application. 
 
 
Q48: Firstly, the test on Borrowing - Borrowing as a % of income Divided by: Net 
Worth. We cannot divide a percentage by a financial value could you clarify the 
calculation? and by Net Worth do you mean Net Assets? 
  
A: There is an error in Appendix A of the Financial Health Guidance. Within the 
Borrowing Calculation the following is mentioned: ‘Divided by: Net Worth’. This has 
been included in error and Net worth does not apply to the due diligence for this 
grant programme. We have published a version 2 of the Financial Health Guidance 
correcting this error on 11/03/2020.  
 
Q49: Secondly the test on Value of Funding as a Percentage of Turnover. Is this the 
value of the grant award in any year as the percentage of our projected turnover? 
 
A: For financial due diligence purposes, the 'Value of Funding' to be used for the 
calculation of the 'Value of Funding as a % of Sales' is based on the total contract 
value. 
 
 
Published: 11 March 2020  

 
Q50: We fundraise through the public to pay for the training participants will 
undertake. Would all training centres count as subcontractors? The ESF funding 
would not be used to pay for the training and we use a wide range so we can match 
the provider best suited to the person based on factors such as class size and 
location. 
 
A: Where the Project Requirements do not require the training to be delivered as 
part of the Project, and if the training adds value to the ESF Project provision and 
there is no duplication of the activities funded by the GLA ESF Project and the 
training activities funded through other sources, then Providers may refer 
participants to other sources of training and fund this from other sources of income if 
they wish to do so. In this case, as the training is not part of the Project and not 
funded by the GLA’s ESF funds it is not covered by our Grant Agreement and 
Provider's would need to satisfy their own internal governance and procurement 
regulations in choosing the training suppliers. Please also refer to guidance in 
Section 2 of the Delivery Handbook and the response to Q11. 
 
Q51: Can work experience placements involve paid work? If for example, we 
supported participants to take short seasonal contracts to gain real work experience 



 

 

on the journey to gaining a permanent job could that be claimed as a work 
experience placement (as long as the work was for a period of at least 70 hours)? 
 
A: The GLA welcomes the provision of work placements for unemployed and 
economically inactive Participants. Work placements are a valuable method of 
enabling Participants to gain up to date skills and experience of work. It is for this 
reason that the Homelessness and Ex-Offenders Projects include an output payment 
for Work Placements lasting a minimum of 70 hours. A payment to cover a 
Participant's expenses while on a work placement, such as travel and lunch, is 
common practice. However, cumulative short seasonal contracts would not qualify 
as work placements. These would be fixed-term or temporary employment (see 
paragraph 148-149 of the Eligibility and Evidence Handbook).  
 
Q52: The clarification answers refers to amendments on the application form 
including the increasing of the pages for answering Part C question 1.1 and 1.2. 
However in fact it seems that you have decreased the space for question 1.1 (project 
methodology) to 2 pages instead of the previous 2.5 pages. As it is a key question, is 
this the correct spacing as it really is not long enough to describe the whole project, 
or is this an error in page spacing, as question 1.2 has been increased from 1.5 to 3 
pages, should not Q1.1 also be at least 3 pages? 
 
A: In light of queries raised regarding the space available for responses within the 
Application Forms we reviewed the space and made adjustments where we felt this 
was necessary. We believe the space provided in the revised forms is sufficient for a 
full response. Whilst we would like full and comprehensive answers, bidders should 
aim to be succinct and write in plain English. Bidders may use the full space 
available for each question but do not have to if they feel they can provide a 
comprehensive response without doing so.  
  
Q53: We just wanted to find out if we can bid as sole deliverer without 
subcontractor/Subgrantees? as we have good links and sizeable presence with 
outreach resources and infrastructure in place across West London. 
 
A: Bidders may apply as either a (i) Sole Lead Bidder (ii) a Sole Deliverer with 
Subcontractors/Subgrantees or (iii) as a Consortium. 
 
Q54: Owing to the current public health crisis (Covid-19), and in line with the practice 
of other funders, who have suspended their procurement plans or revised their time 
table, would the GLA consider giving bidders an extension to the submission date, 
as many colleagues both within our organisations and externally are either unwell, or 
absent due to observing self isolation? 
 
A: We have taken account of provider's views with regard to the procurement 
timetable in the context of the outbreak of the Covid-19, and taking into account both 
this and the Easter holidays, as of today, we have further extended the deadline for 
Applications for the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Round 2 Projects to 12:00 noon on Friday 
1 May 2020. The deadline for questions has also been extended to 17:00 on 
Tuesday 21 April. 
 



 

 

Q55: Subcontractor budget line - whilst the project is a payment by results model 
you are asking for a budget breakdown of the whole project, however there is no 
budget line in the Cost Delivering Project worksheet to state the funding allocated to 
subcontractors.  
 
We are able to accurately forecast internal budgets across requested headings; 
however, It is simply not possible for us to accurately record each subcontractor's 
forecasted spend across staffing, participant costs, other costs e.g. buildings, 
equipment, etc and indirect costs e.g. telephone, postage, utilities, etc and then 
detail this in the application form. In the reality of delivery subcontractors will be 
asked to issue an invoice/funding claim for the outputs and results delivered and this 
will form part of our audit trail. 
 
Please can you advise if you will issue a revised version with this budget line added 
or if not confirm if it is compliant to include these costs in the Staff Costs (Direct 
Delivery) budget heading as in the application form and each subcontractor's 
partnership declaration form you will have the details on what the individual funding 
allocations are for each subcontractor? 
 
A: We can confirm that it will be compliant to include the costs of subcontractors who 
are delivering support directly to Project Participants under the heading 'Staff Costs 
(Direct Delivery)'. If subcontractors are delivering other services they should be 
included under the relevant heading (for example the costs of a subcontractor 
providing support with project management for the Project only would be recorded 
under the heading 'Staff Costs (Programme Management Direct)', whereas the 
apportioned costs of a subcontractor providing support with project management for 
the organisation as a whole would be recorded under the heading  'Staff Costs 
(Programme Management - Indirect)'. Where possible, bidders should endeavour to 
show participant costs and allowances separately from staff costs, even where these 
are provided by the subcontractor, because it will help the GLA to understand the 
level of support being provided to Participants.  
 
Q56: Many thanks for providing the updated Payment Trigger Calculator, the new 
version has indeed rectified all of the formula errors from the first version and works 
perfectly for the numbers input throughout. There is one very minor error now in that 
the Company Name when in put to cell C3 of the Organisation tab in the workbook 
flows on to every other tab sheet with the exception of the Summary of Targets tab 
where the Cell B3 which should show the company Name instead shows a 0. Can 
you confirm that although this fault exist that a new version of the Payment Trigger 
Calculator will not be published and that this minor fault will have no impact on 
submission? 
 
A: We apologise for the inconvenience caused  by this error on the Ex-Offenders 
Project Payment Trigger Calculator (PTC). As this is a small error which does not 
impact on the project unit costs or targets, a new version of the PTC will not be 
uploaded, please continue to use version 2 of the Ex-Offenders PTC. 
 
Q57: What, if any, are the reporting requirements for GLA in terms claiming 
outcomes and payments?  
 



 

 

A: Reporting requirements for the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme can be found in 
Section 2 of the Prospectus and Section 3 of the Delivery Handbook. Bidders should 
also refer to the Eligibility and Evidence Handbook for further guidance on 
evidencing Outputs/Results. 
 
Q58: Are participants required to have an Individual Learner Record to track their 
training progression  
 
A: Participants are not required to have an Individual Learner Record to track their 
training progression. However, all participants will be required to be allocated a Unique 

Participant Reference Number. 
 
Q59: Can you clarify the decrease in page count for Q1.1 it has been shortened to 
just two pages 
 
A: Please see the response to Q52. 
 
Q60: Given the current issues we all have with coronavirus, self-isolation and 
colleagues becoming unwell, will the GLA consider extending the bidding window? 
 
A: Please see the response to Q54.  
 
Q61: Given the uncertainty about restrictions to movement and face to face 
meetings and how long such restrictions will be in place does the GLA have plans to 
allow the successful bidder to update their planned delivery arrangements during 
contracting to reflect changes that may make an August start to delivery difficult? 
 
A: The GLA has extended the deadline for applications to be submitted (please see 
the response to Q54), but still expects to be able to award Grant Agreements by the 
beginning of August 2020. However, the uncertainty of the current situation with 
Covid-19, may impact on this timetable. Bidders are advised to propose delivery 
plans on the assumption that Grant Agreements will be in place by the beginning of 
August 2020, but should also have contingency plans in place in case government 
restrictions are extended or there are other unavoidable delays. 
 
Q62: Please can you confirm that Tower Hamlets is in the Central London Forward 
sub-region not Local London, as it appears on the application form in both sub-
regions but in the prospectus it is in Central London Forward. 
 
A: We apologise for any inconvenience caused by this error on the Parental 
Employment and Ex-offenders Application Forms. Tower Hamlets is in the Central 
London Forward sub-region and not Local London. Please take this into account 
when completing (viii) of the Application Form.   
 
Q63: I am supporting a local social enterprise in preparing for the application to the 
Mayor's European Social Fund 2019-2023 Programme in relation to Homelessness. 
We would be grateful, in light of the current climate, if you could confirm that the 
tender for the programme is still going ahead as planned and applications will be 
accepted until 12pm 9 April 2020? 



 

 

A: Please see the response to Q54. 

Q64: Please clarify what is required for the Due Diligence item: 

Financial Regulations; to include procurement rules. 

This is item 5 in the list within the table at B iii of the application form. 

Is it a heading or is there an actual document (which we can't see) against that? 

A: Please see the response to Q16. To clarify, the requirement is for the Bidder to 
submit their organisation's finance and governance frameworks which provide 
guidance on how a company implements protocols and procedures to ensure proper 
accountability for their activity. This would usually include details of the organisation's 
protocols and procedures in relation to procurement. 
 

Q65: The Parenting specification requests wet signature are required on the 
Partnership Declaration Form.  However, in the current climate we are struggling to 
get to some wet signatures as a couple of partners have locked-down.  Is there any 
flexibility with this please? 

A: Due to the unprecedented situation with the outbreak of Covid-19, we fully 
understand that the requirement to obtain wet signatures may prove difficult for 
some. In the circumstances, electronic signatures or emails from partners confirming 
the information which would normally be in the Partnership Declaration Form will be 
acceptable. 
 
Q66: Could you please clarify if the deadline for applications is 3rd April or 9th April. 
 
A: The original published deadline for the submission of Applications for the 
Homelessness, Parental Employment and Ex-Offenders Projects was 3 April 2020. 
This deadline was extended to the 9 April 2020 due to the requirement to publish a 
number of revised documents. However, due to the current situation with 
Coronavirus we have extended the deadline further to 12:00 noon on Friday 1 May 
2020. Please see the response to Q54. 
 
Q67: Can you confirm that the date provided in Part B 9(i) for the Project Start date 
is the date when we expect to begin delivering the project directly to our first 
Participants and/or Employer Beneficiaries, and is therefore after any 
implementation/mobilisation activity that will occur post award? (Parental 
Employment)  
 
A: The Project Start Date in Part B 9 (i) should be the commencement date of the 
Grant Agreement. The GLA recognises that Providers will normally need time after 
the Grant Agreement commences to set up and mobilise Project delivery 
arrangements. Bidders are therefore asked to state in their Bids the date when they 
expect to begin delivering the Project directly to their first Participants and/or 
Employer Beneficiaries. A good place to present this would be in section 4.3 
(Delivery Plan) of the Application Form. 
 



 

 

Q68: In Part B section iii , Due Diligence documents section of the application form - 
there is a request to submit mandatory documentation which covers the 'Budgeted 
allocation of funding within the project or a budget detailing which activity within the 
recipient’s organisation will be funded, containing line details of proposed 
expenditure (e.g. staffing costs, stationery and publicity'.  

Could you clarify what information you expect in this document and whether it is in 
addition to the budget breakdown required to be completed in the PTCs Cost 
Delivering Project worksheet? or will the budget breakdown required in the PTC 
suffice? 

A: Please refer to the response to Q43. 
 

Q69: Can you also please confirm whether any of the initial advance payment would 
need to be paid back by the provider if underperformance occurs or if this risk sits 
with the commissioner? 

A: Initial advances will be recovered from successful bidders against second stage 
output payments, (see the Payment Trigger Calculator for additional information 
regarding the point where advances will be recovered). If insufficient outputs are 
achieved to enable recovery of the Advance payment, the GLA will recover the 
payment in another manner, which may include one or more of; recovery from other 
output or result payments achieved in the delivery of the project, a requirement to 
pay an invoice for the remaining balance, recovery against any other project that the 
organisation may be delivering on behalf of GLA. 
 
Q70: External Evaluation: There is usually a requirement to externally evaluate GLA 
ESF projects but we can see no reference to external evaluation in the project 
documents. Does the GLA require external Evaluation and if so do we need to cover 
the cost of this in the project budget? 
 
A: The GLA Intend to appoint an external evaluator to review and evaluate the 
Mayor’s ESF 2019-23 Programme (Round 2), there is no requirement for ESF 
Providers to commission or fund the costs of an external evaluation of the Project. All 
ESF Providers are however required to undertake a self-evaluation of their Project 
and to cooperate fully with the external evaluator appointed by the GLA. Further 
information can be found in the 'Project Evaluation' section of the Delivery 
Handbook. 
 
Q71: Many thanks for confirming. Further to my email below, would you be able to 
confirm that the tender for the programme is still going ahead as planned and 
applications will be accepted until 12pm 9 April 2020? 
 
A: Please see the response to Q54. 
 
Q72: I am e-mailing to request an extension to the deadline for the funding 
application regarding Parental Employment. 
  



 

 

Due to the corona virus we have been working extensively over the last 2 weeks on 
our current services, (as I expect you have too) so we haven’t been able to prepare 
our application as we planned and don’t want to miss out on this opportunity.  
 
A: Please see the response to Q54.  
  
Q73: Could you please provide an update in light of the current situation. It would be 
helpful if you could confirm whether the procurement round is continuing with the 
same deadline (9th April), if there will be a further delay or a cancellation. We are 
working hard on these bids so some clarity would be appreciated. 
 
A: Please see the response to Q54.  
  
Q74: I have a clarification question with regards to the effects of the Corona Virus 
(Covid – 19) with many bidders e.g. London Colleges/providers under lockdown or 
now closed. Can you confirm whether the procurement for the Mayors ESF 2019 – 
23 Programme - Round 2 will continue as planned against its current deadline of 9th 
April 2020 or whether you will be releasing any statements relating to the effects of 
Covid-19 that may change / postpone the procurement activity as it currently stands. 
 
A: Please see the response to Q54.  
  
Q75: Is a wet signature required on Part E of the application form?  
 
A: No, just name and job title of person authorised to submit the bid on behalf of the 
organisation is required. 
 
Q76: What evidence will be required with regard to individuals sustaining self-
employment for 26 weeks? 
 
A: Please refer to the Evidence Handbook for details of the requirements for 
evidencing outputs and Results. In order to claim a 'Sustained Employment' Result 
(including self-employment) for a Participant you must be able to provide evidence 
that the Participant has undertaken paid employment each week for at least 26 
weeks during the 32 week sustained period. Suitable evidence may include wage 
slips, self-employed invoices paid, time-sheets signed by employers, signed 
declarations from employers confirming hours worked, copies of HMRC returns. This 
list is not exhaustive and other forms of evidence may be acceptable where 
continuous earnings can be evidenced. 
 
Q77: What evidence will be required to prove individuals are not working if they are 
not claiming any benefits? 
 
A: Please refer to the Evidence Handbook for details of the requirements for 
evidencing outputs and Results. Participants may voluntarily join the programme, or 
be referred, for example by JobCentre Plus. It may be harder to evidence that 
participants are economically inactive if they are not claiming benefits, but Providers 
should follow the ESF 4-step methodology process to obtain confirmation that the 
participant is not working. Ultimately (as a last step) this process allows for self-
certification. 



 

 

 
Q78: Will there be any financial penalty imposed if the equality group targets are not 
reached? 
 
A: Bidders are asked to set out their delivery targets in their application, including the 
proportion of Participants from different equalities groups. If a bidder does not 
believe that the equalities targets set out in the Project Requirements are achievable, 
they may propose alternative targets and provide a rationale for this in their 
application. 
 
Published Tuesday 24 March 2020  
 
Q79: There are a couple of minor issues on the revamped Application Form for the 
GLA ESf ex-offenders tender. 
 
The First is relating to the percentage share of customers from each local authority.  
Tower Hamlets is listed twice against Local London and Central London Forward. 
 
The second issue is that text entered in the Cross Cutting Themes response for 3.2  
automatically defaults to Bold text. 
 
Can you confirm that whilst these minor errors exist that you will not reissue the 
application form and that we can submit our response in this version? 

 
A: With regards to Tower Hamlets being listed twice, please see the response 
provided to Q62. Regarding the text box for the Cross Cutting Theme (3.2) defaulting 
to Bold text, we apologies for any inconvenience caused as a result of this formatting 
error, but as these errors are minor, we will not be reissuing the Application Forms. 
Please continue to use Version 2 of the Application Form.  
 
 
Q80: There have been no new Q&A answers published since 11/3 and a lot has 
changed in the external world. We are spending a lot of time and money developing 
bids which we fear will be wasted because the GLA will withdraw this opportunity. 
Could the GLA as a matter as urgency provide a statement about their intentions in 
relation to the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme, Round 2? 
 
A: We apologise for the delay with publishing the Q&A last week. As you can 
imagine, we have had to review the options in relation to this and forthcoming 
procurements, given the potential impact of this rapidly changing situation on the 
provider base. Please be reassured that we intend to continue with this bidding 
opportunity, but we have extended the deadline for submission of bids in recognition 
that some bidders may be facing additional challenges in developing their bids. All 
organisations registered on our mailing list were advised of this change and the 
website was updated with the new deadline on 24/03/2020.   
 
Q81: There appears to be an error in the PTC for Parental Employment. In tab 5b 
there is no line for sustained progressions in work and in Tab 5a at row 20 there is a 
partial line for sustained progressions. Could this be corrected? 



 

 

A: Please see response to Q16 [Parental Employment] 
 
 
Q82: We note there is a requirement for a wet ink signature on the Partnership 
Declaration Form. In these unusual times where many of the key people we are 
working with are working from home will you accept electronic signatures?   

A: Please see response to Q75.  
 
Q83: If a group of local authorities are bidding, do you require a Section 151 
statement to be submitted as part of the due diligence assessment? 
 
A: Local authorities are not subject to the standard GLA financial due diligence 
checks and therefore a Section 151 statement is not required. Further information 
can be found in the Financial Health Requirements and Guidance document.  
 
Q84: Please can you tell us the difference between 
A subcontractor and a sub grantee? 
 
A: The legal agreement governing the relationship between a Provider and their 
Subcontractor will be a 'Contract for services'. The legal agreement governing the 
relationship between a Provider and their Subgrantee would be a 'Grant Agreement'. 
Grant Agreements will often have different terms and conditions to contracts and 
different rights and remedies apply in law to the parties to these different types of 
agreements. You should consult your legal advisers about which type of agreement 
would be most appropriate in your circumstances. You may also find the answer to 
Q38 helpful. 
 
Q85: What constitutes a disability – is special educational need classified as a 
disability? 
 
A: Please refer to paragraphs 89 -91 of the Evidence Handbook. Participants with 
Special Educational Needs would fall within the 'Disabled' definition for this 
Programme. 
 
Q86: Can clients self-declare a disability? 
A: Yes, as Participants do not have to be disabled to be eligible to participate in the 
Ex-Offenders, Homelessness and the Parental Employment Projects, they are able 
to self-declare that they are disabled when they enrol on the project. Please refer to 
the Eligibility and Evidence Handbook for guidance on self-declarations. Further 
information can also be found in the ESF Data Evidence Guidance 
(https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/746948/data_evidence_guidance.pdf)  
 
Q87: Does Dyslexia count as a disability?  - we have worked with some clients that 
call ‘Dyslexia’ a disability, while others will tell you it is not 
 
A: Dyslexia is a lifelong condition which has a significant impact on a person's day-
to-day life and is covered by The Equality Act 2010. Dyslexia therefore meets the 
criteria of a disability. 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/746948/data_evidence_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/746948/data_evidence_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/746948/data_evidence_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/746948/data_evidence_guidance.pdf


 

 

 
Q88: Some clients will not tell you at the assessment that they have a disability or 
special educational need. However, whilst working with then it becomes clear that 
they do have a special need or disability. Can we claim for a disability/special 
educational need later? 
 
A: Yes, once the Participant confirms that they are disabled, the ESF Provider may 
update the Participant Database with the latest data. 
 
Q89: Is the sustainability plan about use of resources and environmental protection 
or the sustainability of the project after the funding ends? 
 
A: Section 3.2 of the Application Form refers to the Social, Economical and 
Environmental Impact of the Project and how the Project will take the environment 
into account when delivering the Project. Further information can also be found in the 
ESF Cross Cutting Themes Guidance 
(https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf) Questions on 
the sustainability of the Project is embedded in Question 1.10 'Exit Strategy.’ 
 
Q90: If we have an organisation sustainability plan is this sufficient or does it need to 
be adapted with specific reference to this project? 
 
A: Providers with an existing Environmental Management (EMS) Systems already in 
place (these will usually be accredited by ISO standards or other recognised green 
standards) are acceptable as long as they meet the ESF requirements. To be 
acceptable, the EMS policy and related plan(s) must, as a minimum, cover waste 
disposal / waste reduction, energy consumption and green transport requirements as 
described in the ESF Cross Cutting Themes Guidance. There should be an annex or 
addendum attached to the organisations existing EMS policy and action plans 
explaining:   
(i) that their accredited EMS will cover ESF activities being delivered by projects 
within the organisation;                                                                                  
(ii) how the staff / participants delivering the ESF activity will contribute to the wider 
EMS plan – e.g. through planned training / awareness raising / involvement in any 
switch – off campaigns, educating them about waste disposal arrangements etc. 
broadening awareness of green / public transport benefits etc. (NB this is not a 
prescriptive list); and    
(iii) the names and any contract reference numbers  of the ESF projects being 
covered by the EMS policy and plan ( these should be listed in the annex). 
Further information can also be found in the ESF Cross Cutting Themes Guidance ( 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf).   
 
Q91: We have an equal opportunities policy as part of our general staff handbook, 
will this be sufficient, or does it need to be adapted with specific reference to this 
project? 
 
A: The equal opportunities policy should be specific to the ESF Project being 
delivered and should include details of any subcontractors/subgrantees involved in 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf
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https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf


 

 

the delivery of the Project. However, a more `generic’ policy will be acceptable if the 
Provider already has a equal opportunities policy in place which meets ESF 
requirements. Any `generic’ policy should have an addendum or an annex which 
confirms that the policy applies to the ESF project. Further information can also be 
found in the ESF Cross Cutting Themes Guidance 
(https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attach
ment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf).  
 
Published March 31 2020 
 
Q92: I am working on the latest version but it still alters some inputted text to make it 
bold and appear in a different font to other boxes i.e. in Q3.2. The text is not bold on 
a word doc when I extract and unbold it, but then it goes bold in the actual 
application form not invisible, but not consistent with the rest of the document 
 
Also, there are some quirks in the text boxes for substantial bid responses in that 
they also appear to allow text inputting beyond what is visible (at the bottom of the 
page). When the document is viewed in 'zoom out' scales it is possible to see where 
the text box ends for some questions but not for others. This means that some 
responses are somewhat guessed as to where the permittable space runs to. This is 
perhaps not critical, but it is a pain. It means that much needed space for longer 
responses may not be optimised. 
 
Sorry if these points seem pedantic but actually, they make the job of providing a 
strong and compliant bid more difficult and add time fiddling around with formatting 
that is costing charities' time and expense in preparing extensive, complex and badly 
formatted bids. I'm not suggesting a new version because more time would be 
wasted in transferring lots of information across from the latest versions to a new 
latest version of the form. However, are you able to reassure bidders that these 
anomalies won't lead to substantial penalisation of any bid responses e.g. if they 
have gone over a visible limit but are within text boxes that allow them to be entered 
beyond that limit. 
 
A: We apologise for the inconvenience caused, with regards to the formatting of 
Q3.2. With regards to formatting of the text boxes; the answer boxes are restricted 
for all scored questions on the Application Form and therefore the text must be 
visible in order for it to be scored, without the need to zoom out. We will only score 
what is visible in its standard form, so please ensure that the whole response to the 
question is visible, anything that is not visible will not be read and therefore not 
scored. 
 
Q93: In the General Section (iv) accreditations are asked for against lead or 
subcontractor providers of regulated skills training. However, there is only one line 
provided against each line/provider. There is therefore not enough space to 
physically list every type of accreditation. I have therefore just summarised the 
number of accreditations held against the main sectors. However, this text still goes 
over one line and appears to be inputting into the text box, but is only visible for one 
line. It doesn't matter which page view or page size I use . The text is there (because 
it can be extracted by cut or copy and paste to check) but it disappears from view. 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/832417/ESF_Cross_Cutting_Themes_guidance.pdf
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Please confirm that the marker will have a way to read the text that the box accepts 
to be inputted but that goes invisible after one line. 
  
A:  We apologise for the inconvenience caused, if bidders require additional space to 
list the accreditations held by a lead or subcontractor in the General Section (iv), 
please attach a clearly labelled separate Word document alongside the submitted 
Application form. 
 
Q94: Further clarity required on 'Budgeted Allocation of funding within the project or 
a budget detailing which activity within the recipient's organisation will be funded' 
requirement. Please could you expand on your answer to Q43 and confirm that the 
additional budget needs to include the following: 1. A granular breakdown of the 
main PTC headings e.g. Staffing Costs (Direct Delivery) would need to be broken 
down by the various staff roles involved and showing gross salaries and on costs, 
Participant Costs broken down by e.g. travel, equipment, childcare, etc? 
 
A: The ‘Budget Allocation of Funding’ should provide a breakdown of how the total 
funding will be spent across the duration of the Projects lifetime. The bidding 
organisation may present this in a manner most appropriate for themselves. A 
granular breakdown is not necessarily required as long as the breakdown provides 
the GLA with a good understanding of how the budget will be spent overall. Making 
use of the budget headings provided in the PTC and providing a quarterly 
breakdown across the duration of the Project, is one approach that can be taken to 
present the budget breakdown. 
 
Q95: Is it sufficient for these granular budget lines to be contract totals or are we 
expected to show costs by year as per the output/result profiling? 
 
A: It is sufficient to provide grant totals against each budget line per year, there is no 
requirement to further break this down per the output/result profiling. 
 
Q96: Do you require additional narrative against each budget line detailing our 
supporting assumptions and calculations, in addition to the answer required for 
question 2.2 Project Expenditure in the application form? 
 
A: No, a complete response in question 2.2 is acceptable. 
 
Q97: This 'budget' can be submitted in either Word or Excel format as there isn't a 
template issued as part of the ITT? 
 
A: The format for providing the ‘Budgeted Allocation of funding within the project or a 
budget detailing which activity within the recipient’s organisation will be funded’ is not 
prescribed and therefore a submission in either a Word or Excel format is 
acceptable. 
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Q98: Is there a word limit for the responses to the questions contained in Part C of 
the application form 



 

 

A: There are no word limits set, however the answer should fit within the space 
provided. Answers must be visible within the boxes provided to be scored. Please 
also refer to Q.92.  
 
Q99: Are bidders allowed to use diagrams and tables within their responses to bid 
questions contained in Part C of the application form? 
 
A: You can use diagrams and tables to support your responses, but please note they 
must be visible within the relevant response box in order to be scored.  
 

Q100: We note the very detailed response you provided in the General Q and A to 
Q90 regarding Sustainability Plan and Q91 regarding Equal Opportunities Policy. 
Whilst both responses were very comprehensive; they could lead many bidders to 
conclude that they have to produce ESF Contract Specific Policies in advance of 
tender submission. However On Page 18 of the Application Form you simply ask if 
bidders can confirm that they can provide:- a/ A copy of you organisation's current or 
project specific Equality Policy & b/ A copy of you organisation's current or project 
specific Sustainable Development Policy This suggests that the existing 
organizational Policies are sufficient at tender submission stage and the detailed 
response that you previously provided to Q90 and Q91 in the General Q & A 
document relates to the actions that will be required " by the time delivery starts on 
your Project" as per Points 15 and 16 on Part A Pre-Qualification Questionnaire on 
Page 11 of the Application Form. 

A: To confirm responses to Q90 &Q91 refer to the requirement for Providers that 
have succesfully been awarded a Grant to have Project specific Equal Opportunities 
and Sustainability Policies in place by the time delivery starts on the Project. Bidders 
at this stage of the Grant Award Process are only required to confirm if they can 
provide:- a/ A copy of your organisation's current or project specific Equality Policy & 
b/ A copy of your organisation's current or project specific Sustainable Development 
Policy There is no requirement to have developed a ESF Project specific Equal 
Opportunities or Sustainability Policies at this stage. 
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Q101: On Page 18 of version 3 of the application form (iv) Other Documentation you 
previously corrected the question about accredited training to cover the bidder as 
well as any subcontractors/ sub grantees. However, in the revised template one of 
the response boxes has disappeared and two of the options within the question have 
also disappeared from the template. The two missing bullets from the question that 
we believe should still be there are: • have you provided the latest copies of 
appropriate Common Inspection Frameworks? (Yes/No) • have you provided the 
latest copies of appropriate evidence of Centre Accreditation? (Yes/No) Can you 
confirm therefore that whilst the text is not visible that if we say yes in the third box 
available for response that you will recognise that we are saying YES to either or 
both of these statements? This is particularly important for those organisations 
proposing to deliver accredited training who may not have an Ofsted Report. 
 



 

 

A: In Issue 2 of the Application Forms (published on 11 March 2020) we removed 
the requirement to provide the latest copy of an appropriate Common Inspection 
Framework (in section (iv) Other Documentation). The requirements to provide the 
latest copies of appropriate evidence of Centre Accreditation and relevant OFSTED 
reports remain. 
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Q102: Given the current environment, with e.g. charity shops and fundraising events 
being closed or cancelled, and increasing costs as need in the community escalates, 
additional pressure is being put on the cashflow of charities. In order to alleviate 
some of this pressure, would the authority consider increasing the % advance 
payment from 10% available to successful providers, and the frequency with which 
claims can be submitted? 
 
A: Due to the current climate we find ourselves in, the GLA is currently looking into 
increasing the % of advance payment available to Providers on the GLA ESF 
Programmes. If these changes are approved we hope to apply these to Round 2 of 
the Mayor's ESF 2019-23 Programme; but are unable to confirm at this stage. As the 
case is now, all advance payments will be subject to due diligence checks. 
Successful Providers are usually required to submit an ESF Grant Funding claim 
every three months (‘quarterly’). However, Providers may request more frequent 
claim and payment schedules, and we may agree these request at our discretion. 
Projects will be paid no more frequently than by calendar month 
 
Q103: Further to Q61, should bidders assume the start date for this project should 
still be 1st August? 
 
A: Yes, the response to Q61 still stands, the GLA still expects to be able to award 
Grant Agreements by the beginning of August 2020. However, the uncertainty of the 
current situation with Covid-19, may impact on this timetable. Bidders are advised to 
propose delivery plans on the assumption that Grant Agreements will be in place by 
the beginning of August 2020, but should also have contingency plans in place in 
case government restrictions are extended or there are other unavoidable delays. 
 
Q104: Could you confirm where 'travel' should be covered? In 'other costs', there is a 
category for rent and leasing of buildings, and in 'indirect costs', there is a category 
for premises costs. Could you confirm the differentiating factors between these two 
fields? 
 
A: Participant 'travel' costs should be included in Sheet 3 'Cost of delivering the 
Project' within 'Participant Costs'. With regards to ‘Other Costs’ and ‘Indirect Costs’; 
rent and leasing in this case applies to buildings that are to be specifically 
rented/leased for project activity. Indirect premises costs would be if the applicant is 
paying a contribution to premises costs out of Project funds, but these costs would 
be incurred by the applicant anyway (i.e. they already rented the premises), and so 
they are indirect costs. 
 
Q104: We have noticed that the number of lines of text that are visible in the answer 
boxes on the application form varies according to the version of MS Word we are 



 

 

using. Please can you clarify which version of Word you have used to create the 
form and will be using to read it as otherwise some of our text may not be visible to 
you. 
 
A: The GLA uses Microsoft Office 365 ProPlus for the Office Suite. Therefore 
regardless of the version of word used for applications submitted, the responses will 
be able to be read. 
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Q105: Historically, when we have submitted similar responses where the funding is 
provided via ESF, we have encountered issues around the strictness of funding and 
making margin rules. Do these restrictions apply to this project and if so, can you 
advise? We understand that there are strict rules governing ESF funding that are not 
conducive to business’ applying business margins to costs submitted. If this is not 
the case – and business’ are allowed to provide costs which include business margin 
for running such projects using ESF funds, then we would be interested in submitting 
responses for any future projects that would be funded via ESF. In the past this has 
not been the case. 
 
A: We have interpreted this question as a query on whether operating/overhead 
costs can be included in the budget/costs for your project. The answer to this would 
be, yes; as long as the operating/overhead costs are appropriately apportioned and 
the ESF project is not paying more than its fair share of these. However, if the query 
relates to whether an ESF provider can include a commercial margin (i.e. a profit or 
surplus on the cost of delivering the project), the answer would be, no; ESF 
Providers are not allowed to include any ‘profit’ in their ESF budget/costs. 
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